
 

 

 

 

 

Prosser Memorial Health 

Board of Commissioners 

 

Board Packet 

December 16, 2021 



 

December 14, 2021 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS – WORK SESSION 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 14, 2021   

6:00 PM - WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
AGENDA  

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams                       Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
Keith Sattler        Kristi Mellema, CQO 
Brandon Bowden                     Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 
Neilan McPartland                                                                                                
 
 
                                                                                                  GUESTS:                Kurt Broeckelmann, Architect, bcDG 
                     Paul Kramer, Project Director, NV5 
                     Adam Trumbour, Project Manager, NV5 
                     Chris Colley, Graham Construction 
                     Bret Miche, Graham Construction 
                     Gary Hicks, Financial Advisor 
                     Marla Davis, Director of Acute Care 
                     Dr. Richard Unger 
 I.  CALL TO ORDER 

                     A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 

II.   SERVICES 
       A.  Wound Care Program (Attachment L)      Marla /Dr. Unger 
 
       B. Replacement Facility Update                          
              1.   Design Review                                                                              Kurt 
              2    Schedules- Bid and Construction (Attachment G) (Attachment H)   Chris /Bret                                  
              3.   Project Financing Update (Attachment I) (Attachment K)    Gary   

 
             III.   QUALITY 
        A.  Hospital Comparison (Attachment FF)                                                                           Kristi  
                      B.  Question and Answer                                                                                                                           ALL 
                            1. 2022 PMH Operating and Capital Budgets (Attachment V) 
              2. 2022 PMH Strategic Plan (Attachment A) 
              3. 2022 PMH Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment/Retention Plan (Attachment N) 
              4. 2022 PMH Marketing Plan (Attachment B) 



 

December 14, 2021 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

  5. 2022 PMH IT Plan (Attachment C) 
 
               IV.  ADJOURN    



December 16, 2021 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2021

6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM
AGENDA

COMMISSIONERS: STAFF:
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D. Craig Marks, CEO
Sharon Dietrich, M.D. Merry Fuller, CNO/COO
Glenn Bestebreur David Rollins, CFO
Susan Reams Kevin Hardiek, CIO
Keith Sattler Shannon Hitchcock, CCO
Brandon Bowden Kristi Mellema, CQO
Neilan McPartland Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO

GUEST: Dr. Rob Wenger

I. CALL TO ORDER
A. Pledge of Allegiance

II. PUBLIC COMMENT

III. APPROVE AGENDA
Action Requested – Agenda

IV. CONSENT AGENDA
Action Requested – Consent Agenda

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for November 18, 2021
B. Payroll and AP Vouchers #161424 through 161978, date 11-11-21 through 12-08-21 in the amount of

$6,159,787.47. Board Policies: #100.0021; 1000.022; 1000.023; 1000.024 Surplus Items Resolution: # 1061

V. MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT
A. Medical Staff Report and Credentialing Dr. Wenger

1. New Appointment
ACTION ITEM:
A motion to approve the New Appointment and requested Clinical Privileges that have been reviewed and
recommended by the Department Chair, the Credentialing Committee, and the Medical Executive Committee
for the following providers:

Mitchell Cohen, MD- Provisional/Active staff with requested privileges in Gastroenterology effective January 1,
2021 through June 30, 2022.



December 16, 2021 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda

John Gilstad, MD-Provisional/ Locum Tenens staff with requested privileges in Internal Medicine effective
January 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022.
Kevin Huang, MD-Provisional/ Locum tenens staff with requested privileges in General Surgery effective January
1, 2021, through June 30, 2022
Kai Jones, PA-C-Provisional/ Advanced Practice Clinician staff with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine
effective January 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022
Jonathan Reed, MD-Provisional/ Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic Radiology effective
January 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022.
Carson Van Sanford, MD- provisional telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective January
1, 2021, through June 30, 2022
Action Requested – New Appointment and Requested Clinical Privileges

2. Reappointment
ACTION ITEM:
A motion to approve the Reappointment and requested clinical privileges that have been reviewed and
recommended by the Department Chair the Credentialing Committee and the Medical Executive Committee for
the following providers:
Ridhima Gupta, MD-Reappointment to Active staff with requested privileges in OB/GYN effective January 1,
2022 through December 31, 2023.
Edward Lane, MD-Reappointment to Courtesy staff with requested privileges in Family Medicine effective
January 1, 2022, through December 31, 2023.
Amy Backer, MD-Reappointment to Consulting staff with requested privileges in Pathology effective January 1,
2022, through December 31, 2023.
Action Requested – Reappointment and Requested Clinical Privileges

3. Category Change Request
ACTION ITEM:
A motion to approve the clinical privileges Category Change Request that has been reviewed and recommended
by the Medical Executive Committee for the following provider:

Steven Elerding, MD-Privileged in General Surgery, requesting to change category from Active Staff to Honorary
Staff, effective January 1, 2022.
Action Requested- Category Change Request

B. 2022 Medical Staff Model & Provider Recruitment/Succession Plan (Attachment N) Dr. Sollers/Craig
Action Requested- 2022 Medical Staff Model

VI. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP
A. Review Financial Reports for November 2021 (Attachment U) David

Action Requested – Financial Reports

B. Review 2022 Operating and Capital Budgets (Attachment V) David
Action Requested – 2022 Operating and Capital Budget

C. COVID-19 Financial Plan (Attachment W) David/CRAIG



December 16, 2021 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda

VII. EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
A. SEIU Contract 2021-2024 (Attachment T) Bryon/Merry

Action Requested – SEIU Contract 2021-2024

VIII. SERVICES

A. Review 2022 PMH Strategic Plan (Attachment A) Craig
Action Requested – 2022 PMH Strategic Plan

B. Review 2022 PMH Marketing Plan (Attachment B ) Shannon
Action Requested – 2022 PMH Marketing Plan

C. Review 2022 IT Plan (Attachment C) Craig
Action Requested – 2022 PMH IT Plan

Action Requested – PMH Replacement Facility Design Development

IV. QUALITY

A. Review 2021 Environment of Care (EOC) Report and 2022 EOC Plan (Attachment EE ) Kristi
Action Requested – 2021 and 2022 PMH Environment of Care Plan

C. COVID-19 Update Merry/Dr. Sollers

D. Legislative and Political Updates Commissioner Bestebreur

E. CEO/Operations Report Craig

X. ADJOURN



 

 

 
PMH 

Board of Commissioners 
Work Plan – FY2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
January 
 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve 2021 Strategic Plan 
and 2021 Patient Care Scorecards 

• Sign Financial Disclosure and Conflict 
of Interest Statements 

• Approve 2021 Risk Management and 
Quality Assurance Plans 

• Select and Approve Board Officers 
 
SERVICES: 

• Approve acquisition of two 
replacement ultrasound units 

• Approve acquisition of Virtual 
Desktop Infrastructure 

 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2020 Employee Engagement 
Survey Results 

• Review 2020 Medical Staff 
Engagement Survey Results 

 
QUALITY: 

• Review Board Self-Evaluation 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review semi-annual financial 
performance report for PMH Clinics 

 
SERVICES: 
     Replacement Facility Update 

• Design Development 

• Budget 

• Vision 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
February SERVICES: 

• Approve Acquisition of trans 
esophageal echo (TEE) equipment 

• Approve GC/CM 
 

QUALITY: 

• Approve 2021 Corporate Compliance 
Plan 

• Approve 2021 Infection Prevention 
Control Plan 

• Approve 2021 Board Action Plan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review and Approve 2021 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend AHA Governance Conference 
Virtually 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review 2020 Corporate Compliance 
Report  

• Review 2020 Infection Prevention 
Summary 

 
MEDICAL STAFF: 

• Cardiology Update – Nuclear 
Medicine, TEE 

March QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 
 
MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Providers’ Day Celebration 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accept 2020 Audit Report 

• Approve USDA application for new 
facility 

 
SERVICES: 

• Approve Design Development of new 
facility 

• Approve initial budget for new facility 
 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Patient Engagement Plan 

• Review 2020 Utilization Review 
Performance 

• Approve 2021 Utilization Review Plan 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Performance 
Report 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Presentation of the 2020 Audit 
Report by Auditors 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
SERVICES: 
   Replacement Facility Update 

• Design development 

• USDA Application 

• Budget 
 

April QUALITY: 

• Approve 2021 Community Benefits 
Report 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Conduct CEO Evaluation 
 
MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

• Approve Benton City Clinic 
renovations to accommodate 
Dermatology and approve acquisition 
of Dermatology Equipment 

QUALITY: 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Review 2020 Community Benefits 
Report 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• PMH Security Update 

• Review 2020 Leadership Performance 
(LEM) 

• Review Employee Engagement Plan 
 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2020 FPPE/OPPE Summary 

• Review proposed Dermatology 
Program 
 

May EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Hospital Week 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHP: 

• PMH Foundation Update 
 
SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Review PMH Clinic productivity 

• Medical Staff Engagement Plan 
 
 

 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
June QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2020 CAH Annual Review 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Approve SEIU contract 

QUALITY: 

• Report 2020 Q1 Utilization Review 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review PMH Uniform Program 
 

SERVICES: 

• Marketing Update 

• PMH Telehealth Update 
 

July MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend BOC, Medical Staff and 
Leadership Engagement Activity 
 

 

SERVICES: 

• EMS Update 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
QUALITY: 

• Quality Committee Report 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Human Resources Update 

• Retirement Program Update 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review Semi-Annual Financial 
Performance Report for PMH Clinics 

• Review HR/Payroll Software (IT) 
 

August EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend end of summer Engagement 
Activity for BOC, Medical Staff, and 
all staff 

• Review Leadership and Exempt Wage 
Scales  

 

No Board Work Session 
 
QUALITY: 

• iVantage Update  
 
 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Banking relationship Selection 
  

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Centralized Scheduling/POS 
Collections Update 

• Review Banking Services  
 

September QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leadership Development 
Activities 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve USDA Loan Agreement 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Benefit Changes 
 
SERVICES: 
    Replacement Facility update 

• USDA 
 

October  QUALITY: 

• Conduct 2022 Strategic Planning  

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 
 

November FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Budget and Property Tax 
Request for County Commissioners 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• iVantage Update 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review LDIs and status update on key 
Studer initiatives  

 
SERVICES: 

• Review draft 2022 Strategic Plan; 
2022 Marketing and IT Plans; and 
Medical Staff Model/2022 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review draft 2022 Budget 
 

December QUALITY: 

• Complete Board Self-Evaluations 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve the 2022 Environment of 
Care Plan 

 
SERVICES: 

• Approve 2022 Strategic Plan; 2022 
Marketing and IT Plans; and Medical 
Staff Model/2022 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2022 Operating and Capital 
Budgets 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend holiday celebration 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review the 2021 Environment of 
Care Plan 
 

 

 



                               2021 -  Strategic Plan Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2021 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2021 YTD 2020 Avg 2019 Avg

Patient Loyalty
IP - "Would Recommend" >87.9% 90.0% 90.0% 90.0% 80.6% 74.9% 93.3% 94.4% 93.4% 93.7% 92.9% 88.8% 88.5% 87.9% 85.1%
ED - "Would Recommend" >81.4% 63.2% 63.2% 63.2% 70.6% 60.8% 85.4% 92.3% 62.9% 83.9% 81.3% 92.2% 83.8% 81.4% 80.3%
Acute Care - "Would Recommend" >84.1% 85.7% 85.7% 85.7% 72.5% 85.0% 93.8% 90.0% 80.0% 92.5% 91.7% 95.8% 92.4% 84.1% 78.6%
OB - "Would Recommend" >92.3% 91.7% 91.7% 91.7% 83.3% 95.2% 83.9% 100.0% 81.1% 93.8% 93.2% 91.7% 94.1% 92.3% 92.2%
Outpatient Surgery - "Would Recommend" >91.0% 71.3% 71.3% 71.3% 100.0% 93.8% 83.3% 97.2% 100.0% 94.8% 91.7% 100.0% 95.3% 89.8% 91.0%
Clinic - "Would Recommend" >87.3% 71.3% 71.3% 71.3% 74.7% 79.9% 92.9% 90.6% 88.0% 91.0% 92.5% 89.9% 90.5% 87.3% 87.1%
Outpatient - "Would Recommend" >88.4% 77.4% 77.4% 77.4% 74.7% 79.9% 93.0% 94.9% 98.0% 93.6% 94.8% 93.1% 93.8% 88.1% 88.4%
Composite Score >86.2% 75.7% 75.7% 75.7% 80.6% 79.7% 89.3% 88.3% 88.8% 92.4% 92.3% 9170.0% 91.7% N/A N/A
Medical Staff Development
Medical Staff Turnover <10% 0% 2% 2% 0% 0% 0% 0% 4% 2% 2% 0% 12.0% 0.2% 0.2%
Prosser Specialty Clinic Visits 1,062              1,051              1,023        1,401        1,301        1,281        1,455        1,443        1,388        1,368        1,346        1,534       1,326        954 950
Benton City Clinic Visits 1,005              885                 696           881           801           742           778           724           574           754           739           681          750           837 958
Prosser RHC Clinic Visits 1,052              1,406              1,149        1,503        1,357        1,398        1,297        1,236        1,239        1,150        1,092        938          1,251        1226 960
Grandview Clinic Visits 742                 592                 522           621           644           670           789           729           960           875           972           952          757           589 568
Women's Health Center  629                 604                 636           727           627           653           647           530           563           565           489           610          605           601 469
*# of Active Medical Staff >51 49 49 49 51 51 51 51 51 52 52 52 50.72727 45 41
Employee Development
403(B) Participation Rate >55% 99% 97% 97% 99% 99% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 99% 98% 46% N/A
Average Recruitment Time (days) <28 24 18 26 23 17 32 21.8 14 18 20 14 21             32 28
# of Open Positions (Vacancies) <23 25 29 42 12 12 34 49 47 38 35 29 32             29.4 23
Hours of Overtime - Overtime/Total Hours Worked <4.5% 7.3% 5.2% 5.3% 6.2% 5.5% 5.9% 6.7% 6.1% 7.4% 5.2% 5.0% 6.0% 5.9% 5.7%
Agency - Cost/Total Labor <8.7% 5.9% 7.4% 6.8% 8.3% 8.9% 7.7% 9.9% 8.3% 6.5% 4.1% 11.1% 7.7% 7.6% 14.5%
Turnover Rate <0.6% 0.0% 2.4% 0.03% 0.7% 0.0% 1.0% 1.0% 0.9% 3.4% 0.6% 0.9% 1.0% 0.6% 0.7%
Timely Evaluations >79.6% 61.0% 67.0% 78.0% 85.3% 55.0% 67.8% 65.5% 73.9% 76.5% 80.0% 81.1% 71.9% 70.2% 79.6%
Education Hours/FTE >2.15 1.14                1.03          1.26          0.99          1.13          1.12          0.33          0.51          1.12          1.50          1.69         1.07          1.22 1.55
New Hire (Tenure) < 1 year <10% 0% 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0.30          0.30          0.30          0.30         11% 0.0% 0%
* Lost Workdays due to On-the-Job Injuries <10.25 0 7 9 4 3.5 45.28 31.12 35.75 43.25 29 14 20.17       10.25 167
Quality
ED Encounters - Left Without Being Seen <0.8% 0.2% 1.0% 0.7% 1.6% 0.4% 2.0% 1.8% 2.0% 2.1% 1.2% 2.1% 1.4% 0.8% 1%
*Falls with Injury <2 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 3.0 2 3
Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.07% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.29% 0.07%
All-Cause Unplanned Readmissions within 30 Days <2.7% 5.9% 9.2% 11.1% 3.7% 6.3% 3.0% 5.7% 5.3% 4.1% 4.1% 4.1% 5.7% 3.8% 5.4%
Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result <27.61% 22.83% 21.92% 20.51% 19.07% 27.70% 21.70% 14.87% 20.90% 21.95% 25.50% 19.90% 21.53% 27.61% 30.3%
Services
ED Visits 916                 820                 712           874           1,035        1,133        1,227        1,317        1,376        1,268        1,134        1,167       1,097        805 1,016
Inpatient Admissions 86                   112                 89             93             117           118           117           145           151           119           119           97             116           83 83
OB Deliveries 45                   42                   47             39             46             52             48             69             53             45             48             37             48             41 37
Surgeries and Endoscopies 137                 100                 133           187           180           183           190           171           215           185           166           220          175           101 118
Diagnostic Imaging Procedures 2,087              2,628              2,439        3,112        3,336        3,156        3,233        3,067        3,040        3,100        3,209        2,960       3,025        2280 1,957
Lab Procedures 12,374            14,626            12,570     14,659     14,800     14,902     14,474     15,174     15,064     13,641     14,955     13,566     14,403     11768 11,051
Adjusted Patient Days 1,453              1,644              1,496        1,948        1,871        1,722        1,574        1,653        1,848        1,694        1,665        1,585       1,700        1393 1,624
Therapy Visits 1,706              1,333              1,401        1,792        1,520        1,373        1,706        1,423        1,386        1,470        1,323        1,324       1,459        1314 1,145
Outpatient Special Procedures Visits 245                 213                 255           256           342           354           397           393           353           340           358           274          321           247 224
Financial Performance
Net Days in Accounts Receivable 51                   59                   60             62             64             66             59             59             60             58 54 57 57             63 63.79
*Total Margin 13.47% 11.4% 0.5% 8.7% 8.8% 9.0% 10.1% 8.7% 54.0% 11.1% 15.0% 22.7% 19.3% 4.5% 5.30%
Net Operating Revenue/FTE 19,448$         16,427$         15,351$   18,366$   19,282$   18,115$   19,821$   18,956$   39,610$   20,835$   20,507$   22,027$  20,845$   $17,191 $15,794
Labor as % of net Revenue 51.60% 61.10% 56.50% 54.20% 58.40% 57.95% 51.99% 58.88% 50.67% 64.96% 55.29% 59.00% 57% 61.3% 59.6%
Operating Expense/FTE 16,894$         14,635$         15,385$   16,722$   17,705$   16,728$   15,953$   17,419$   18,353$   18,631$   17,579$   17,060$  16,925$   $15,891 $15,190
*Days Cash on Hand 156                 169                 152           146           146           147           155           152           154           156           143           158          158           183 120.39
Commercial % 29.10% 27.40% 29.00% 29.30% 28.40% 27.10% 28.30% 28.10% 28.40% 28.10% 28.40% 28.90% 29% 29.0% 28.7%
Total Labor Expense/Total Expense 59.00% 68.59% 56.41% 59.48% 63.62% 62.37% 61.73% 63.76% 57.37% 61.89% 59.68% 61.80% 62% 61.3% 62%

Green at or above Goal 
Yellow within 10% of Goal
Red More than 10% below Goal
*Cumulative Total - goal is year end number



                       2021 -  Patient Care Scorecard .9 Multiplier 1.1 Multiplier

Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2021 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2021 YTD 2020 2019
Quality
Left Without Being Seen <0.80% 0.24% 0.98% 0.69% 1.55% 0.44% 2.04% 1.82% 2.03% 2.05% 1.23% 2.14% 1.48% 0.80% 1.11% 0.0072 0.80% 0.0088
Median Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time for Admitted Patients <44 min 75 68.5 60 75 51.5 56.5 45.5 69 60 53 52  61 70 N/A 39.6 44 48.4
Median Time from ED Arrival to Departure for Discharged ED Patients <107 min 136 110 118 122 109 112.5 112 113 119 114 120  117 128 N/A 96.3 107 117.7
Venous Thromboembolism Prophylaxis >93.1% 92.9% 86.2% 85.7% 89.4% 95.9% 90.4% 96.1% 91.8% 87.8% 90.7% 97.4% 91.6% N/A N/A 0.8379 93% 1.0241
Exclusive Breast Milk Feeding Patients >44.4% 52.6% 51.3% 56.3% 50.0% 43.8% 47.9% 68.3% 62.5% 57.1% 59.6% 44.4% 54.4% N/A N/A 0.3996 44% 0.4884
All-Cause Unplanned 30 Day Inpatient Readmissions <2.7% 5.9% 9.2% 11.1% 3.7% 6.3% 3.0% 5.7% 5.3% 4.1% 4.1% 4.1% 5.4% 3.80% 5.40% 0.0243 2.70% 0.0297
Sepsis - Early Management Bundle >84.6% 100.0% NA NA 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 66.7% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 93.3% 72.73% 84.60% 0.7614 85% 0.9306
Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.07% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.29% 0.07% 0.00063 0% 0.00077
Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result  <27.61% 22.83% 21.92% 20.51% 19.07% 27.69% 21.74% 14.87% 20.90% 21.95% 25.50% 19.90% 21.56% 27.61% 30.25% 0.24849 28% 0.30371
Medication Reconciliation Completed >90% 51% 44% 42% 48% 46% 46% 49% 45% 41% 48% 45% 46% 47.15% N/A 0.81 90% 0.99
Turnaround time of 30 minutes or less for STAT testing <30 min 42 40 39 35 37 37 40 39 37 40 37  38 37.5 30 27 30.00      33
Median Time to ECG < 7 min 8 6.5 7.5 6 8 6 7 9 6 4 5  6.6 7 7 6.3 7.00         7.7
Surgical Site Infection <0.25% 1.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.56% 0.55% 0.00% 0.58% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.21% 0.25% 0.30% 0.00225 0.25% 0.00275
Safe Medication Scanning >92.9% 91.8% 95.0% 93.5% 92.8% 92.8% 90.8% 92.9% 92.4% 94.9% 95.7% 95.2%  93.4% 98.90% 90% 0.8361 92.9% 1.0219
*Overall Quality Performance Benchmark (iVantage) >53 51            51            51            51            61            61            61            61            61            61            61             61            53 54 47.70            53.00      58.3
*Falls with Injury <2 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0  3 2 3 1.8 2.00         2.2

Green at or above Goal  (4)
Yellow within 10% of Goal  (2)
Red More than 10% below Goal  (0)



 

  WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM         Board Work Session                                       NOVEMBER 16,2021 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT GUESTS                 GUESTS 

 Dr. Steve Kenny, PH.D. 
 Glenn Bestebreur 
 Keith Sattler 
 Brandon Bowden 
 Susan Reams 

 Craig Marks, CEO 
 Merry Fuller, CNO/COO  
 David Rollins, CFO 
 Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
 Kristi Mellema, CCQO 
 Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

 

 Kurt Broeckelmann, 
Architect, bcDG 

 Paul Kramer, Project 
Director, NV5 

 Adam Trumbour, 
Project Manager, NV5 

 Bret Miche, Graham 
Construction 

 
 

 Chris Colley, Graham    
Construction 

 Trevor Grafstra, 
Graham Construction 

 Hilary Beashore, 
Associate, Senior 
Project Manager, 
bcDG 

 Gary Hicks 
 
 

 
 

                      AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 
  I.  CALL TO ORDER The Meeting was called to order by 

Commissioner Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None. 
 
 
 
 
 



II.  SERVICES    
A. Replacement Facility Update 

 
 
 
 
 
 

   

1. Design Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kurt Broeckelmann, bcDG provided a 
design team update regarding the 
replacement facility project, including 
the creation of a dedicated c-section 
suite on the OB Unit. 

None. None. 

2. Early Procurement 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Representatives from Graham 
Construction and NV5 reviewed the 
general concept of early procurement 
and how it could help the PMH 
Replacement Facility Projects stay on 
schedule. They also spoke to the two 
areas (structural steel, pneumatic 
tube) they would recommend 
procuring early. 

None. None. 

3. Construction Loan 
 
 
 
 
 

Gary Hicks and Keith Kleven provided 
an overview of the Construction Loan 
acquisition process for the PMH 
project. They also indicated that they 
have a very good proposal (private 
placement) from Western Alliance 
that is better than our budget and 
they are not recommending pursuing 
a public bond offering. 
 

None. None. 



4. Certificate of Need 
(CON) 

 
 
 
 
 

Craig informed the Board the 
Washington Department of Health 
notified us of their intent to issue a 
CON for our project. They will officially 
issue the CON after they review our  
SEPA (State Environmental Protection 
Agency) application which will be 
submitted to them soon by our civil 
engineer. 

None. None. 

III. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP    
A. 2022 Operating Budget 

 
 

 
 

 

David reviewed the draft Operating 
Budget for 2022 and responded to 
questions. 

None. None. 

B. 2022 Capital Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

David reviewed the draft Capital 
Budget for 2022 and asked the Board 
for input. 

None. None. 

C. Property Tax Resolution and 
Certificate 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

David reviewed the proposed 2022 
Property Tax Levy that will go to the 
County Commissioners for approval in 
November. 

None. None. 



IV. EXECUTIVE SESSION      
 The Board adjourned to executive session at 6:40 p.m. 

A.  RCW 42.30.110 (l) To 
consider proprietary or 
confidential nonpublished 
information related to the 
development, acquisition or 
implementation of state 
purchased health care 
services as provided in 
RCW41.05.26. 

 

   

V.  ADJOURN    
The Board resumed their regular 
Work Session at 6:50 p.m. There 
being no further business, the 
meeting was adjourned at 6:52 p.m. 

   

 



 

 

 

  WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM         BOARD MEETING                                  NOVEMBER 18, 2021 
  COMMISSIONERS PRESENT  STAFF PRESENT MEDICAL STAFF                 GUESTS 
 Steve Kenny, PH.D. 
 Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 
 Glenn Bestebreur 
 Susan Reams 
 Keith Sattler 
 Brandon Bowden 
 Neilan McPartland 

 Craig Marks, CEO 
 Merry Fuller, CNO 
 David Rollins, CFO 
 Kristi Mellema, CQO 
 Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
 Bryon Dirkes, CHRO  
 Dr. Brian Sollers 
 

 

 Dr. Syed Hashmi 
 

 

                     AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
     A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 

The Meeting was called to order by 
Commissioner Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

None. None. 

 II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

  
 

None. 

III.  APPROVE AGENDA None. Commissioner Reams made a 
Motion to approve the October 
28, 2021, Board Meeting 
Agenda. The Motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Dr. 
Dietrich and passed with 7 in 
favor, 0 opposed. 
 
 

None. 



 

 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

IV.  APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
 
        A.  Board of Commissioners 
              Meeting Minutes for  
              October 28, 2021. 
 
        B.  Payroll and AP Vouchers 
              #161031 through 
              #161423 dated 10.21.21 
              through 11.10.21 in the 
              amount of  
             $5477,908.88. Surplus    

Items Resolution #1059 
Mindray Patient Monitors 

 

None. Commissioner Reams made a 
Motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda.  The Motion was 
seconded by Commissioner 
Bowden and passed with 7 in 
favor and 0 opposed. 
 
    

None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    

V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT  DISCUSSION  ACTION  FOLLOW-UP 

        A.  Medical Staff Report and  
            Credentialing          
 
         1. Advancement from 
              Provisional 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. Hashmi presented the following 
providers for Advancement from 
Provisional: 
 
Hanbing Wang, MD-Telemedicine 
privileges in Neurology effective 
December 1, 2021, through May 31, 
2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A Motion to approve the 
Advancement from Provisional: 
 and Requested Clinical 
Privileges that have been 
reviewed and recommended by 
the Medical Executive 
Committee for the following 
providers was made by 
Commissioner Dr. Dietrich.  The 
Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Reams.  The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor 
and 0 opposed. 
 

None. 



 

 

       2.  New Appointment 
 
           A.  Appointment and 
                 Requested Clinical     
                 Privileges 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. Hashmi presented the following 
providers for Appointment: 
 
Blake Roy, CRNA-Provisional/Allied 
Health Professional staff with 
requested privileges in Anesthesia 
effective December 1, 2021, through 
May 31, 2022. 
 
Cyrus Rahnema, MD-Provisional/ 
Locum Tenens staff with requested 
privileges in Emergency Medicine 
effective December 1, 2021, through 
May 31, 2022. 
 
Michael McCarthy, MD-Provisional/ 
Consulting staff with requested 
privileges in Pediatric Cardiology 
effective December 1, 2021, through 
May 31, 2022. 
 
Robert Jackson, MD-Provisional/ Tele 
medicine staff with requested 
privileges in Neurology effective 
December 1, 2021 to May 31, 2022. 

A Motion to approve the   
Appointments and Requested 
Clinical Privileges that have 
been reviewed and 
recommended by the Medical 
Executive Committee for the 
following providers was made 
by Commissioner Reams.  The 
Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Dr. Dietrich.  The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor 
and 0 opposed. 
 

None. 



 

 

3. Reappointment Dr. Hashmi presented the following 
providers for Reappointment: 
 
Kevin Marsh, MD-reappointment to 
the Logan Tenens staff with requested 
privileges in Pediatrics effective 
December 1, 2021 through November 
30, 2023. 
Tyrell Nielson, PA-C- reappointment to 
the Allied Health Professional Staff with 
requested privileges in Family Medicine 
effective December 1, 2021, through 
November 30, 2023 
Abdelrahman Beltagy, MD-
reappointment to the Telemedicine 
staff with requested privileges in 
Neurology effective December 1, 2021 
through November 30, 2023 
Sheila Smith, MD-reappointment to 
the Telemedicine staff with requested 
privileges in Neurology effective 
December 1, 2021 through November 
30, 2023 
kn  

A Motion to approve the   
Reappointments and 
Requested Clinical Privileges 
that have been reviewed and 
recommended by the Medical 
Executive Committee for the 
following providers was made 
by Commissioner Reams.  The 
Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Bowden.  The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor 
and 0 opposed. 

  
 
 

 

B.   PMH Medical Staff Bylaws  
       Rules and Regulations      
(Attachments AA AND BB) 

 A motion to approve the 
revised Prosser Memorial 
Health Medical Staff Bylaws 
and Rules & Regulations that 
have been reviewed and 
recommended by the Medical 
Executive Committee and the 
Medical Staff at Prosser 
Memorial Health was made by 
Commissioner Reams. The 
Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Bowden.  The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor 
and 0 opposed. 

 



 

 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 
VI.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP    

A. Review Financial Reports  
              For October 2021 
              (Attachment)                 

David Rollins presented the October 
2021 Financials. 

A Motion to accept the 
Financial Reports for October 
2021, was made by 
Commissioner Dr. Dietrich and 
seconded by Commissioner 
Reams.  The Motion passed 
with 7 in favor and 0 opposed. 
 

None. 

B.  2022 Budget and Property 
Tax Requests for County 
Commissioners (Attachments 
and  )  

           
 

 

David Rollins presented the proposed 
2022 Property Tax Requests for the 
County Commissioners. 

A Motion to approve the 2022 
County Property Tax Request, 
was made by Commissioner 
Reams and seconded by 
Commissioner Dr. Dietrich.  The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor 
and 0 opposed. 

None. 

C. Early Procurement- Structural 
Steel (Joists and Decking) & 
Pneumatic Tube Design 
(Attachment M&N) 

 

The Board reviewed the proposal for 
early procurement of Structural Steel 
(Joists and Decking) and Pneumatic 
Tube Design for the replacement 
facility project. This action will enable 
the project to remain on schedule. 

A Motion to approve the 
Structural Steel & Pneumatic 
Tube Design, was made by 
Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner 
Bowden.  The Motion passed 
with 7 in favor and 0 opposed. 

 

D. New PMH Foundation Board 
Member-Carol Knee 

Shannon Hitchcock on behalf of the 
PMH Foundation recommended that 
Carol Knee be approved to become a 
PMH Foundation Board Member. 

A Motion to approve New PMH 
Foundation Board Member 
Carol Knee, was made by 
Commissioner Dr. Kenny and 
seconded by Commissioner 
Reams.  The Motion passed 
with 7 in favor and 0 opposed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

VII.   Services    
A. 2022 PMH Strategic Plan 

Review (Attachment ) 
 

 

The draft 2022 PMH Strategic Plan was 
reviewed by Pillar with Board. 

None. None. 

VIII.    Quality    
A. COVID-19 Update 

 
 

Merry Fuller and Dr. Sollers briefly 
updated the Board about Covid-19 at 
PMH. 

None. None. 

B. Legislative and Political 
Updates 
 

Glenn Bestebreur gave a brief overview 
of state and federal legislative issues. 

None. None. 

 
C. CEO/ Operations Report 

 

Craig answered questions regarding his 
written report and encouraged Board 
members to complete their self-
evaluations. 

None. None. 

IX.  ADJOURN    
A.  There being no further 

          business, the meeting was  
          adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 

         

    
 



 

JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE                                                   December 08, 2021                                              VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT NON-MEMBERS PRESENT 

 Commissioner S. Reams 
 Commissioner S. Dietrich 
 Commissioner S. Kenny 
 C. Marks, CEO 
 Dr. D. Weaver 
 Dr. B. Sollers 

 M. Fuller, CNO, COO 
 K. Mellema, CQO 
 Dr. S. Hashmi 

 
 

     AGENDA ITEM                                                                                DISCUSSION                                            RECOMMENDATION            FOLLOW-UP 
CALL TO ORDER  Meeting was called to order by Commissioner Reams at 0702. 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES November 2021 minutes were reviewed and approved by the 

Committee.   
For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

QUALITY 
COVID-19 Update K. Mellema reported that the Prosser and Benton City Clinics are 

now administering Pfizer 5–11-year-old COVID-19 vaccine.  
Education was provided to the staff on the preparation and 
administering of the vaccine.  C. Marks reported that there is a 
therapeutic oral medication being developed by Pfizer.  Dr. S. 
Hashmi reported that there is a trial called “Move Ahead” being 
conducted by Merk for those patients that got COVID-19 and are 
going back home where they could potentially expose family 
members.  Those family members would receive the prophylactic 
medication.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary.  

Safety & EOC Committee 
Update 

K. Mellema reported that the last meeting was November 30th but 
there was not a quorum.  Rather the small group discussed the Tru-D 
Smart UVC system and the eye injuries it has caused.  There were 3-
4 people affected with one being out of work for seven days due to 
the eye injury. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary.  



Hospital Comparison 
 

K. Mellema shared the Hospital Quality Comparison grid which 
compared seven organizations that have online websites that 
compare hospitals based on a set of metrics.  A complete report with 
each organizational summary will be available in the Board packet 
for review. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 

2021 EOC Summary and 
2022 EOC Plan 

K. Mellema reported on the Environment of Care 2021 
Summary/2022 Work Plan prepared by Steve Broussard.  This 
management plan encompasses seven areas of the healthcare 
environment such as:  Emergency Preparedness, Hazardous 
Materials, Life Safety, Patient Technologies, Safety & Accident 
Prevention, Security and Utilities.  Each section contains the 2021 
summary with an accompanying 2022 Work Plan. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 

PATIENT LOYALTY 
Patient Experience 
Results 

M. Fuller reported on the monthly summary.  Year to date data for 
all departments is exceeding last years numbers.  Overall composite 
score is 91.7%. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item.  

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Medical Staff 
Recruitment 

Dr. Sollers reported that Dr. Gilstead signed a locums contract 
through March.  He will be in the Prosser Clinic, starting January 3rd.  
Dr. Thompson is a new family practice and will be in the Prosser 
Clinic starting in April.  Zack Garland is our newest ARNP and is doing 
well.  Emergency medicine continues to be a work in progress, and 
we are looking at a more encompassing Orthopedic provider to 
include sports medicine.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

Medical Staff 
Model/2022 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

Dr. Sollers reported that everything is lined out for next year 
regarding the recruitment plan and working on filling it.  MEC has 
approved this plan which will now go before the Board for approval.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

Radiologist Review M. Fuller reported that we have looked at three different night hawk 
services. It has been decided that we will be staying with our current 
night hawk service, but we will maintain the contract vs Dr. 
Zuckerman.  They guarantee a 24-hour coverage by 
January/February.  Dr. Zuckerman will work 8-5pm Monday through 
Friday.  This will go to the Board and MEC next month.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

PMH Clinics Leadership C. Marks reported that we have opened this position up and are 
receiving resumes. The plan is to interview candidates as early as 
next week.  Our goal is to fill that position with an individual that has 
had clinic experience.  We will involve all the clinic medical staff, the 
leadership team, and staff in the interview process. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 



 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 
Engagement Activities C. Marks reported that on December 16th we will be celebrating with 

a prime rib luncheon and giving out gifts to staff.  Contests include:  
Ugly Sweater, Cookie Contest, and Christmas Tree Ornament 
Decorating Contest.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

SEIU Negotiations 
Update 

M. Fuller reported that we currently have a tentative agreement 
with voting to ratify occurring tomorrow and a final decision late 
Friday.  Everyone on SEIU side is satisfied with the decisions.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 

SERVICES 
Wound Care Program M. Fuller reported that currently we have a nurse driven program 

that physicians can refer to.  Our intention is to move toward a 
provider based wound care program with a physician doing periodic 
assessments which help to prevent any lags in care.  Dr. Unger will 
be available to be that provider.  He has been a wound care provider 
in the past.    A presentation regarding the program will be done 
from Marla and Dr. Unger at the Board Work Session.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

Replacement Facility 
Update 

C. Marks reported that we are preparing to do the bidding in 
January/February.  There will be a design update this month from 
Kirk Brockelman.  The new design includes a dedicated c-section 
suite which has changed the exterior design.  Kirk and his team are 
working closely with the DOH on the designs.  Approximately 2/3 of 
the job will be bid in January and results will go to the Board in 
February.  The remaining 1/3 of the bids will go to the Board in 
March.  However, this timing is dependent on how the bids come in.  
The construction loan has final terms from Bank of America as well 
as the equipment lease of $1.7 million planned for CT, MRI, etc.  
Gary Hicks will review this information at the Board meeting.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
Financial Performance - 
November 2021 

C. Marks reported that in November, we were 21% over budget on 
the revenue side.  We made $1.8 million which consists of Covid Net 
Review of $1.5 million which was recognized.  We recently 
discovered a little over $200,000 in Purchased Labor for Rehab that 
did not get booked last month.  If you take out the $1.5 million and 
the $200,000, we still exceeded budget by $300,000 with year to 
date at $15.7 million of profit.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

COVID-19 Financial Plan 
 

C. Marks reported that the Federal Government approved the use of 
the $1.3 million we received.  This is now recognized on the Income 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 



Statement.  We applied for Phase Four - Provider Relief Payment, of 
which we received just under $1.7 million.  So far, we have spent 
$107,000 and will use the rest throughout the new year.  

ADJOURNMENT & NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 
Meeting adjourned at 0831 
Next scheduled meeting 01/19/2022 

 

K. Mellema 12/8/2021 



December 13, 2021 Finance Committee  

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
MONDAY – December 13, 2021    

7:00 a.m. – VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 
AGENDA 

 MEMBERS:          STAFF: 
 Keith Sattler         Craig Marks 
 Neilan McPartland        David Rollins  
 Brandon Bowden        Stephanie Titus 
                        

          
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
         I.   APPROVE MINUTES 

Action Requested – November 15, 2021 Minutes 

       II.    FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
 A.  Review Financials – November 2021 (Attachment U)                                          David 
                    Action Requested – November 2021 Financial Statements 
 
               B. Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal                         Stephanie  
  
              C.  COVID-19 Financial Projection Plan (Attachment W)                                                David 
   
              D.  Vouchers List                                                                                                                     
                     Action Requested – Vouchers List - Payroll and AP Vouchers # 161424 through                 David 
                     # 161978 dated 11-11-21 through 12-08-2021, in the amount of $6,159,787.47 
 
              E.   2022 Operating Budget/Capital Budget                                              David 

      Action Requested- Review (Attachment V) 
 
 

        III.  ADJOURN 
  



 

 

 

            FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  November 15, 2021                                    VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 
                    GUESTS 
 Keith Sattler 
 Neilan McPartland 

 
 

 Craig Marks, CEO 
 David Rollins, CFO 
 Stephanie Titus, Director of Finance 

Operations 
 
 

  

                     AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 
  I.  CALL TO ORDER Keith Sattler called the meeting to 

order 7:03 a.m. 
 
 

 
 
 

 

II.   APPROVE MINUTES  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A motion to approve the 
Finance Committee Meeting 
Minutes for October 25, 2021 
as presented was made by 
Neilan.  The motion was 
seconded by Keith and 
approved.   

None. 



 

 

III.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP  
  

A. Review Financials –  
October 2021 

             (Attachment N) 
              

 Net Income was $1,092,917 based 
upon $16,428,465 gross charges which 
was 11% greater than budget. COVID 
Funds contributed $337,283 to Net 
Revenue of $7,284,829 or 13% greater 
than budget. Diagnostic Imaging was 
$0.6M greater than budget followed by 
Lab at $0.4M. and the Clinics $0.4M. 
Expenses were 368,027 greater than 
budget or 6% driven by Health 
Insurance $93K and Supplies $325K, 
403B $53K, and Taxes $51K greater 
than budget. Net Income YTD increased 
to $13,888,085. Cash Flow was a 
positive $713,432 and YTD $2,134,331. 
 

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the October 
2021 Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 
of Commissioners was made 
by Neilan. The motion was 
seconded by Keith 
 and approved.   

None. 

      B.  Review Accounts Receivable  
            and Cash Goal  
 

Net A/R declined by $684,242 driven by 
collections in Commercial. Net Days 
declined to 54 and Cash Days increased 
to 152 days excluding COVID restricted 
funds or 159 days with $1,389,154 in 
COVID Restricted Funds due to a 
positive cash flow of $713,432 for the 
month and $2,134,331 YTD driven by 
$6.8M in collections and $1.4M in cost 
report settlements for 2020 and 
interim 2021. The Director of PFS quit 
unexpectedly and PMH is working to 
hire an Interim Director in the next few 
days. 
 
 
 
 

None. None. 



 

 

     C.  COVID-19 Financial 
           Projection Plan (Attachment  
           R) 

PMH is expecting to keep all the 
currently unallocated COVID Funds of 
 $1,389,154 and it is awaiting approval 
for Phase IV Funding from HHS. 
 

None. None. 

     D.  Voucher Lists  
           Payroll and AP Vouchers 
           #161031 through #161423 
           Dated 10-21-21 through 11- 
           10-21 in the amount of  
           $5,477,908.88 and Surplus 
           Items Resolution 
           #1059-#1060 Surplus Items:     
            
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A motion to recommend 
approval of the Voucher Lists 
#161031 through #161423 
dated 10-21-21 through 11-
10-21 in the amount of            
$5,477,908.88 and Surplus 
Items Resolution #1059-#1060 
was made by Neilan, 
seconded by Keith , and 
approved.    

None. 

     E.  2022 Operating 
Budget/Capital Budget 
 
 
 

The initial draft Operating Budget is Net 
Income of $5,385,287 or 6.2% on 
$218M in Gross Charges or an 11% 
increase over a projected 2021 Actuals, 
Expenses are up 11% due to higher 
Labor costs of 9%, Supplies 18%, and 
Purchased Services due to increased 
volumes. The draft Capital Budget is 
$1,381,853, highlighted by additional 
Surgical and Specialty Clinic Equipment. 
 

 None. 

III.  ADJOURN       
Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:55 a.m. 

 



MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

  PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 

FROM:   CRAIG J. MARKS, CEO 

DATE:   DECEMBER 2021 

RE:  CEO REPORT 

______________________________________________________________________________  

SERVICES 

1.  2022 PMH Strategic Planning  

       For the past several months we have been working to finish 2021 strong, while at the same time 

preparing for 2022 and the challenges it will bring. Our 2022 Strategic Planning Process involved 

meetings with all of our Team members including staff, Board, Medical Staff and leadership. The 

discussions we had about the future of Prosser Memorial Health were uplifting and inspirational. The 

ideas suggested by our Team, which were distributed in the November board packet, were excellent and 

ranged from enhancements we can make soon, to long-term changes that will position us well for the 

future. While we discussed our replacement facility project, we also focused on our Pillar Goals, 

objectives, and the strategies that will enable us to achieve them. The result is our 2022 PMH Strategic 

Plan (Attachment A) which does all these things. 

     As in previous years, we did not review our Mission, Vision, Values, and Standards of Behavior, as 

they are typically reviewed every 5 to 10 years. Our current Mission, Vision, Values, and Standards of 

Behavior were created/revised in the fall of 2016. We will plan to review them again in 2022 or 2023 

before we move into our replacement facility. The 2022 Strategic Plan will be a challenge to accomplish 

as it contains many initiatives to pursue and achieve ranging, from our continued recruitment of 

additional providers to the development of a replacement facility. Most of our initiatives focus on and 

promote our continued growth and our commitment to become the best hospital we can be. It is 

important to emphasize that this Plan keeps us focused on our Six Pillars of Excellence, the keys to our 

long-term success. The initiatives in the Plan are both short-term (e.g., provider recruitment) and long-

term (e.g., the development of a replacement facility) and will enable PMH to be successful in both the 

short and long-term. The Board will be asked to approve the proposed 2022 Prosser Memorial Health 

Strategic Plan at the December Board Meeting. 

2.  2022 PMH Marketing Plan 

     The past couple of years PMH has worked hard to increase our marketing efforts throughout the 

Yakima Valley (Yakima to the Tri-cities) and it has paid off. We are now seeing patients from 

communities throughout the Valley and patient volumes throughout PMH have continued to rise. 

Shannon Hitchcock, Chief Communications Officer, has developed these significant marketing/ 

communication strategies that tell the Prosser Memorial Health story to the communities we serve, and 

there is more to come. Shannon has developed a draft 2022 PMH Marketing Plan (Attachment B) which 



is a comprehensive overview of how we plan to continue telling our story through direct mail, social 

media, newspaper, billboards, radio, television, town hall webcasts, etc. The plan emphasizes our 

providers, staff and the caring approach they provide to every patient, the new and advanced services 

provided at PMH (e.g., gastroenterology (GI) services); and how we will provide ongoing communication 

about all the wonderful things happening throughout Prosser Memorial Health, especially the 

development of our replacement facility and our 75th Anniversary. The board received a draft 2022 

PMH Marketing Plan last month and will be asked to approve it in December. 

 

 

3.  2022 PMH Information Technology (IT) Plan 

      The use of electronic health records (EHRs) and robust IT infrastructures are critical in healthcare 

today and will be long into the future. We are very fortunate that in 2016 we were able to partner with 

Kadlec/Providence and share their EHR-Epic the number one EHR in the world. After five years, PMH is 

now more familiar with  Epic and its advantages and challenges PMH has worked hard to make the 

transition to Epic as easy as possible and will continue to work with our staff on enhancing our use of 

Epic. This along with several other initiatives were in our 2021 IT Plan and will also be in our 2022 IT 

Plan. Phillip Braem, our new Chief Information Officer, and his staff have reviewed the 2021 IT Plan, and 

collected IT suggestions/opportunities throughout the year and the Strategic Planning Process. In 

addition, they have reviewed the initiatives in the draft 2022 PMH Strategic Plan that have IT 

implications (e.g., GI- new software: Provation). In response, they develop the draft 2022 PMH IT Plan 

(Attachment C) which assesses our infrastructure needs (hardware and software) and our IT 

programmatic opportunities. Several key initiatives included in the IT plan include: ongoing EPIC 

education for staff; The replacement of Lawson as our Human Resource/payroll software platform; the 

completion of the installation of the virtual desktop infrastructure throughout PMH; and the continued 

focus on cyber security to protect our system and data from outside attacks. These are all initiatives that 

will enhance the performance of our IT systems and enhance staff engagement/satisfaction with our IT 

systems. The Board will be asked to approve the 2022 PMH IT Plan at the December Board Meeting. 

  

 

4. Replacement Facility Update 

     Despite the magnitude of our replacement facility project, as we come to the close of 2022.We have 

made significant progress on this project this year and remain on schedule. In fact, the only significant 

hurdles left to overcome before we break ground in 2022, are to obtain Department of Health (DOH) 

approval of our drawings and a successful bid process. Both are scheduled to occur in early 2022. An 

update of recent project activities is included in the Owner's Representative (NV5) Project Report for 

December (Attachment D); the minutes from our last project team meeting (Attachment E); and the 

project schedule for the next four months (Attachment F). We continue to work on this project by 

dividing it into three main areas: design; construction/ schedule/ budget; and USDA/ financing. As it 

relates to the design aspects of the project, our design team (bcDG) is busy working on the completion 

of the construction documents which are now scheduled to be completed January 24, 2022. This is 



approximately one month later than previously expected due to the design changes required to meet 

the DOH expectations of a dedicated C-Section Suite located on the OB Unit. It should be noted that this 

design change will not negatively impact our bid process. DOH is satisfied with our proposed change and 

is now in the process of reviewing the remainder of our design plan with the design team. Our design 

team is planning to present their progress on the exterior of the building because of the recent interior 

floor plan changes (C-Section Suite). To the board at the December Board Work Session.  

     Graham Construction is working on the bidding process (Attachment G) and the overall construction 

schedule (Attachment H) for the project. These schedules and processes will be discussed with the 

Board at the December Board Work Session. The ultimate goal of the bid schedule will be to develop a 

MACC (maximum allowable construction cost) for the Board to approve in March. To accomplish this 

Graham is proposing to have 67% of the bids finalized in February in the form of a mini-MACC and 

possibly seek Board approval. The remaining 33% of the bids would be finalized in March when the 

Board will be asked to approve the final MACC. Graham will discuss this in more detail with the board in 

December. We also have a lot of USDA/ financing activity happening as our Financial Adviser- Gary Hicks, 

works with us to secure a construction loan and a $3.6 million operating lease for the purchase of major 

equipment (e.g. CT scanner, MRI) for the project. Based on our current activity, Gary has updated our 

Project Financing Plan (Attachment I). Gary has also obtained a revised term sheet for the construction 

loan with Western Alliance Bank (Attachment J) and a term sheet from Bank of America for a proposed 

Operating Lease (Attachment K). While the Board will not be asked to approve either of these 

transactions in December, Gary will review all financing activity with the Board at the December Board 

Work Session and answer any questions Board members may have. 

 

5.  Wound Care Program 

      Marla Davis and Dr. Unger have been researching the advantages of expanding our current wound 

care program to a provider-based wound care program as outlined in our 2022 PMH Strategic Plan 

(Attachment L). Our current model is limited to the scope of the certified wound care nurse who 

assesses each patient and makes recommendations to supplement the orders provided by the referring 

provider.  The referring provider reassess patients at random intervals, sometimes several weeks apart. 

Necessary changes to the plan of care are often delayed due the need to schedule additional 

appointments or obtaining new orders from the referring provider. 

      With a provider-based wound care program, the patient is assessed and treated regularly by a 

provider with expertise in wound care. Changes to the care plan are quickly identified, entered, and 

implemented. More aggressive wound debridement (outside of the RN scope of practice) can be 

provided during the provider evaluation, ensuring no delay in care or additional visits for the patient. 

      Two companies have provided a proforma for launching a provider-based wound care program and 

implementing a hyperbaric program. After reviewing the proformas we have decided to work with 

Healogics. Given the space limitations in our current facility, we have chosen to delay hyperbaric until 

we move into our new building. Dr. Unger has worked with both companies providing provider-based 

wound care and will provide medical staff oversight for our program. We anticipate expanded volumes 

and revenue in 2022 for Outpatient Special Procedures (OSP), and more importantly, faster wound 

healing for our patients. This program will be reviewed at the December Work Session. 



 

Patient Loyalty 

1.  Community Appreciation 

      During this season of giving, we have so much to be thankful for at PMH. This past year may have 

been the most challenging we have ever faced at PMH, as we continue to fight the COVID-19 pandemic 

and saw record volumes throughout the organization. However, one thing that remained constant was 

the willingness of our team to go the extra mile for the good of our patients and the communities we 

serve. The giving spirit of our staff and organization is reflected in the attached thank yous (Attachment 

M1- M7) and shows how much we are appreciated. We are truly blessed with one of the most generous, 

compassionate, and caring teams in the country! Thank you for all that you do and may it be returned 

tenfold to each of you during this holiday season!!! 

       

Medical Staff Development 

1. 2022 PMH Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment/Retention Plan 

      One of the reasons we have been successful the past couple of years is because of the development 

and implementation of our Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment/ Retention Plan. This Plan has 

allowed us to double the size of our Medical Staff and most importantly, better meet the growing health 

care needs of the communities we serve. As part of the Strategic Planning Process for 2022, we once 

again spent a considerable amount of time discussing the Medical Staff Development Pillar, and 

specifically, the provider needs of the communities we serve. Based on the need analysis contained in 

the 2022 Strategic Planning Packet (not a perfect system, but one based on population and used across 

the country), we continue to have needs in both primary and specialty care despite all of our success. 

These shortages force residents to seek care elsewhere, which helps explain our historically low market 

share. The proposed 2022 PMH Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment/ Retention Plan 

(Attachment N) was reviewed and approved by the PMH Medical Staff and is recommended to the 

Board for approval in December. The Plan is a mix of primary (FP, IM) and specialty (EM, GI, Ortho, 

Physiatry, Endocrinology) care providers, and will be challenging to accomplish considering the 

nationwide provider shortage. 

 

2.  Medical Staff Recruitment 

      As we near the end of 2021, I am pleased to report that we were successful in filling over 80% of our 

open provider positions in 2021. In the past month we signed Catherine Spomer, Nurse Practitioner 

(Attachment O) to join the Benton City Clinic and Dr. John Gilstad, Internal Medicine/Geriatrics 

(Attachment P) to join the Prosser Clinic initially as a locum tenens, but hopefully permanently. Both 

Catherine and Dr. Gilstad will join our Team in January. Please join me in welcoming both to PMH! We 

continue to interview and schedule visits for providers specializing in family practice, emergency 

medicine, orthopedics surgery, and physiatry (pain medicine). We plan to host many provider visits in 

2022 as we work to meet the expectations outlined in our 2022 Medical Staff Model and Recruitment 

Plan. 



 

3. PMH Clinics Leadership 

     For the past several months, we have had an interim Director of PMH Clinics, Charles Ellis, working 

with our Medical and Administrative Directors of our clinics using our Dyad Management Structure. We 

have been advertising the position and plan to begin interviewing candidates before the end of the year 

and hopefully name our permanent Director of PMH Clinics in January. Charles’ interim assignment ends 

at the end of this year, and I would like to thank him for his leadership the past several months. While 

my goal is to fill the position by the end of January, if we have not found the right candidate we will 

continue to look. Providers and staff in the clinics, along with the Leadership Team will be invited to 

participate in the interview process for any finalists. 

 

4. Benton City Clinic Remodel-Dermatology 

     We recently received a report from Nelson Construction, the company performing the remodel work 

on the Benton City Clinic to accommodate our new Dermatology practice. They reported that 95% of the 

mechanical and electrical work is complete; the new walls are up, and all drywall is patched and 

prepped; interior repainting is complete, and the flooring installation is currently in progress. The best 

news is that the project is expected to be completed on time per the schedule, by December 23, 2021. 

This means that after the New Year, Dr. Nylander will have full access to all of her equipment and 

procedure rooms so that she can begin to provide the full complement of Dermatology services she 

planned to provide, without the crowding she was experiencing in the Benton City Rural Health Clinic 

portion of the building. 

 

 

5. Radiologist Update 

     We have had a contract agreement with Dr. Zuckerman and Dr. Ballard for the past three years to 

provide radiologist services, including after-our coverage. Unfortunately, our current contract is not 

working well, resulting in radiologist burnout and issues brought to our attention by the Medical Staff. 

To help improve our services, we are exploring several outside companies for radiologist services, and 

we are also talking to Dr. Zuckerman about providing radiologist services from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday 

through Friday, with PMH covering the after-hours, weekends, and holidays through a tele-radiology 

contract with another company (such as Real-Radiology, the company Dr. Zuckerman uses). We plan to 

continue exploring our options and discuss this with the Board at the January Board Work Session and 

ask the Board to approve a new contract at the January board meeting. 

 

Employee Development  

1. Employee Engagement 

 



     As we did last year, despite the COVID-19 pandemic, we are still going to fill the month of 

December with holiday festivities (Attachment Q). While we are not going to have our Annual 

Holiday Party, we will have a day of celebration throughout PMH on Thursday, December 16th. This 

year we will have two individual contests, a Christmas Cookie Contest, and our Annual Ugly Sweater 

Contest. These contests are open to all PMH Team members, including Board members. We will also 

have a Department Christmas Ornament Contest, with all entries to be used to decorate the PMH 

Christmas tree in the lobby. Unfortunately, our tree and all our ornaments were lost in the recent 

trailer fire, but it has provided us a wonderful opportunity to show-off the artistic talents of our staff 

for years to come. Prizes will be awarded to the top entries and events like this will help everyone 

get into the holiday spirit. To also assist with the holiday spirit, departments throughout PMH have 

volunteered to purchase gifts for less fortunate families in our community. Once again thank you to 

everyone that is participating for your generosity. Finally, we will be serving our Annual Holiday 

Lunch/Dinner on the 16th to both the day and night shifts. The meal will once again include prime 

rib, mashed potatoes, veggies, and peppermint stick ice cream. While we wrap-up 2021, we are 

already making plans for our Annual Employee Recognition Luncheon (years of service) in January. 

Stay tuned for more details after the holidays. Also included in the Board packet is the December 

employee newsletter (Attachment R) which contains useful information such as a reminder to 

complete your 2022 Benefits Open Enrollment. 

 

2. Employee/Medical Staff Engagement Surveys 

      

     The engagement survey process for both our staff and medical staff ended on November 22nd. 

This process is conducted once per year and enables us to objectively and anonymously hear from 

our staff and Medical Staff about how well we, as an organization, are engaging with our team. This 

process will identify areas of change from previous years (because we use the same survey 

instrument and questions), areas where we are performing well and opportunities for improvement. 

We will use this information to develop strategies to enhance our performance at the department 

level and throughout the organization. At this time, we only have high level results from People 

Element (the company that performed the survey), such as participation levels. Our staff 

participation rate was 82% compared to 76% in 2020. Our Medical Staff Participation rate was 74% 

compared to 79% in 2020 considering everything that has been going on in healthcare, these are still 

strong and will provide us an accurate view of the engagement levels of our team. We anticipate 

detailed reports to be available in January where they will be shared with everyone and used to 

develop our improvement plans. 

 

 

 

3. ASPIRE Program 

 

     One of the highlights at our Annual Holiday Party is the recognition of all recipients of ASPIRE 

Awards throughout the year (Winners in 2021- (Attachment S) and the random selection of twelve 

of those individuals to receive checks ranging from $250 to $1,000. These individuals were 

recognized for living our ASPIRE Values. Specifically, they are being recognized for doing things for 

their patients, co-workers, visitors, providers, etc. that go above and beyond their regular job 



descriptions. Due to the pandemic, the random drawing will once again be held in the Vineyard 

Conference Room at 2:00 p.m. December 16th, immediately following the Holiday Luncheon. It will 

also be available as a Teams meeting so staff can participate at our clinics or from home. Four 

Bronze Medal recipients will receive checks for $250; four Silver Medal recipients will receive checks 

for $500; and four Gold Medal recipients will receive checks for $1,000. ASPIRE Award recipients do 

not need to be present to win and the checks will be delivered to the lucky individuals shortly after 

the drawing. Please join me in thanking each of these individuals for their efforts to exceed the 

expectations of others and truly make PMH great! 

 

 

 

4. SEIU (Service Employees International Union) Negotiations Update 

 

     On December 3rd, the Prosser Memorial Health bargaining team (Merry Fuller, David Rollins, 

Bryon Dirkes and Kirk Ehlis, legal counsel) held the final negotiation session with the S.E.I.U 

bargaining team which represents RN's and LPN's working for PMH. The team successfully reached a 

Tentative Agreement assisted by a Federal Negotiations Mediator. The S.E.I.U bargaining team 

closed out the final session indicating that they will recommend ratification to the membership for 

the vote scheduled December 9, 2021. Once ratified, the contract (Attachment T) will remain in 

effect through July 30, 2024. Following union ratification, we will present the contract to the Board 

for approval, which we have tentatively planned for the December Board Meeting. 

        

 

    

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP  

1.  Financial Performance – November 

          As we near the end of 2021, I am pleased to report that our financial performance remains strong, 

and our overall financial position has never been stronger in the history of Prosser Memorial Health 

(Attachment U). In November our patient volumes declined slightly from previous months, but 

continued to be better than budget. The one area where our volumes are significantly below budget are 

inpatient swing days. The reason for this is that during the height of the Delta COVID-19 surge, we had 

to stop accepting swing patients because we needed the beds for COVID-19 and other acute care 

patients. We are now beyond the need to hold patient rooms for surges and are once again accepting 

swing bed patients. It should be noted, however, that this could change at any time, especially if new 

COVID-19 variants such as Omicron cause increased admissions in the future. The result of our strong 

patient volumes was gross revenue of $16.6 million, which was $2.86 million (21%) better than budget. 

Our deductions from revenue continue to be conservative ($2.3 million or 29% over budget) despite a 

very favorable payor mix with 33.6% commercial patients. On a positive note, we were able to recognize 

$1.5 million of COVID-19 Relief Funds that we were afraid we would have to pay back at the end of the 

year. As a result, our net revenue for November was $8 million or $2 million (35%) better than budget. 

Our operating expenses were in line with our volumes, but $509,893 (9%) over budget. Most of the 



expense averages were in salaries due to increased volumes, and an accrual for purchased labor of over 

$200,000 that should have been recognized in October. After adding in non-operating income, the result 

was a net income of $1,827,355 or $1.5 million better than budget. If you remove the COVID-19 Relief 

Funds recognized in November and the missed accrual for purchased labor, we would have finished the 

month approximately $200,000 better than budget. As I have previously stated, when our monthly 

financial performance is strong, our year-to-date performance also gets stronger and that is certainly 

the case for PMH. Our gross revenue is better than budget, as is our net revenue, operating income, and 

net income. The only area worse than budget is our expenses which are 6% over budget, but this can be 

explained by our 18% increase in revenue (volume). Year-to-date our net income (bottom line) is $15.7 

million compared to a budget of $10.4 million for a positive variance of $5.3 million (52%). This strong 

operating performance also led to a positive cash flow of $1.4 million in November and $3.6 million 

year-to-date. This has also strengthened our balance sheet where we now have over $30 million in cash. 

Our financial position remains strong and positions PMH well for the future, including the construction 

of a replacement facility. 

 

2.  2022 Operating and Capital Budgets 

      After several months of working with our Leadership Team, the finance staff have developed 

proposed 2022 PMH Operating and Capital Budgets (Attachment V) which the Board will be asked to 

approve at the December meeting. The budgets are based upon input from our staff, Leadership Team, 

Medical Staff and the proposed 2022 Strategic Plan. The budget packet goes into great detail about the 

specifics contained in the budgets so I will not. Please note, that we continue to be in growth mode, but 

it is difficult to predict the pace of growth in the future. This is specifically true in 2022 because we saw a 

definite surge in volumes in 2021 due to the pandemic which is not likely to be repeated in 2022. 

Regardless of the volumes we experience in 2022, our goal will be to achieve our budgeted net income 

and total margin. Based on our projections our Operating Budget is projecting a net income (bottom 

line) of $4,585,938 (6.01% total margin) plus $1,521,762 of COVID-19 relief funds for a total net income 

of $6,107,700 and a total margin of 6.9%. This performance exceeds our Financial Stewardship Pillar 

Goal of 6.0% and will enable us to continue our journey towards a new facility. Our proposed capital 

budget includes $1,613,634 of acquisitions which will be paid for with cash. In addition, per USDA 

requirements, PMH must pay for the first $17 million of our replacement facility project as a result, we 

our projecting that we will spend approximately $12,270,000in 2022 on the project. As a result, we are 

projecting a negative cashflow of ($7,364,915) in 2022, but this was always part of the plan and enables 

us to maintain our strong financial position throughout the replacement facility project. 

 

 

3.  PMH Foundation Update 

      The Foundation is wrapping up the Quiet Phase of the Capital Campaign for the new hospital project. 

We currently have $868,000 in confirmed pledge commitments and $3.2 million in proposals that are 

being followed up on this month. Our goal is to be halfway to our $3 million goal by the time we 

transition into the public phase of the campaign in the spring. To date we have 12 providers, 5 



Commissioners, 4 Foundation Board Members and 115 staff members contributing to the Foundation. 

We will begin the Public Phase of the campaign when we formally announce the project at a 

groundbreaking event in the Spring of 2022. As a thank you, all Foundation donors will receive a long-

sleeved blue T-shirt in January. We will also have a donor appreciation event June 8 at Vintner’s Village 

prior to Bottles, Brews and Barbecues. 

     The Annual Gingerbread House event (online) is wrapping up this week. We enjoyed strong online 

sales again this year. Thank you to everyone who purchased a Gingerbread House! Lastly, we are excited 

to announce that Carolyn Knee has joined the Foundation Board! Carolyn will begin her term beginning 

in January 2022.  

     Save the dates: Go Red for Women Luncheon is tentatively on the calendar for February 2022. 

Bottles, Brews, and Barbecues is June 9th & 10th, and the Wine Country Classic is Friday, September 9 at 

Canyon Lakes Golf Course. 

 

 

      

Quality 

1.COVID-19 Update 

Just when we thought we were getting a handle on the COVID-19 pandemic with increased vaccinations, 

and declining COVID-19 diagnoses, hospital admissions and deaths, the new COVID-19 variant, Omicron, 

is announced. While little is known about Omicron, it does have the potential, like the Delta variant, to 

once again increase the negative aspects of the pandemic (e.g. positive cases, hospitalizations, deaths, 

etc.). At PMH we continue to promote vaccinations and boosters (we have all three vaccines available) 

the wearing of masks, frequent hand washing, and socially distancing. We have been fortunate at PMH 

we currently do not have any positive inpatients and have experienced very few staff testing positive for 

COVID-19 over the past several months. We plan to continue our current practices until the pandemic is 

officially declared over. 

 

2.COVID-19 Financial Plan  

   While we have been fortunate to financially perform well throughout the pandemic due to the 

assistance we have received from the Federal Government, we continue to seek additional financial 

assistance that will assist us weather any future challenges. In November, we received notice from HHS 

(Health and Human Services) that they approved our utilization of $1,389,154 COVID-19 relief funds. 

(Attachment W). As a result, our November Income Statement shows our use and recognition of those 

funds. Those funds were on our balance sheet, but we thought we might have to return them in 

December. This is great news! In addition, this fall we applied to HHS for Phase 4 Provider Relief 

Payment (PRP). In late November we learned that $7.5 billion of the Phase 4 PRP dollars were sent out, 

and on November 24th PMH received $1,679,461 (Attachment X). These funds will be used through the 

end of 2021 and throughout 2022. The funds show up on our Balance Sheet, but will only appear on our 



Income Statement when they are used. We did not expect to receive any additional funds at this time, 

but it certainly positions us well for the future. Merry Christmas!  

3. Board Policies 

     The Board will be asked to approve the following Board Policies in December: Financial Spending 

Authority Limits (Attachment AA); Credit and Collection Policy (Attachment BB) Funded Depreciation 

(Attachment CC); and Annual Budgets (Attachment DD). The only changes being recommended by 

Administration to these Policies are title changes, typos, etc., Thus the Policies will be placed on the 

Consent Agenda. If the Board would like to make changes and/or discuss the proposed Policies, any 

Commissioner may remove a policy from the Consent Agenda and place it on the Regular Agenda. 

     

 

 

4. 2021 Environment of Care (EOC) Report and 2022 EOC Plan 

     As in previous years, the 2021 (EOC) Report and Plan for 2022 was developed by Steve Broussard, 

Director of Support Services, for Board review and approved in December (Attachment EE). This 

comprehensive report covers several EOC areas that are integral to our ongoing operations but are not 

always topof mind for our staff. Steve does an outstanding job of educating our entire Team about the 

importance of these areas and is always well prepared when we are surveyed by regulatory agencies. As 

a result, we do well in the surveys and provide a safe environment for our patients, visitors, and staff. 

On behalf of PMH, I would like to thank Steve for all his efforts in this area! 

 

 

5. National Hospital Rating Options 

     There are numerous organizations that take publicly reported data to create comparisons of hospitals 

across the country. Just to name a few are: the Lown Institute, Care Compare (hospital compare), IBM 

Watson (Truven), The Chartis Group (iVantage), The Leapfrog Group, Healthgrades and many more. The 

information provided by these organizations help consumers make informed decisions about where to 

go for health care by allowing the customer to select multiple hospitals and directly compare 

performance measure information related to heart attack, heart failure, pneumonia, surgery, and other 

conditions. 

     As part of our ongoing commitment to Quality and to reach our ultimate Vision of being a Top 100 

Critical Access Hospital, we engaged with Chartis Group (AKA iVantage) in 2020. The Chartis Group is the 

analytical company that publishes the annual list of Top 100 Critical Access Hospitals and bases their 

metrics on pillars similar to our Pillars of Excellence such as: Patient Satisfaction, Quality, Services and 

Financial Stewardship. In order to ensure that we are using the best possible set of metrics that would 

best suit us for hospital comparisons and to reach our Vision, our Chief Quality and Compliance Officer , 

Kristi Mellema, conducted a comparison of seven (7) different organizations that provide hospital 

comparison information (Attachment FF) after a thorough investigation, it was determined that we are 



best suited to remain with The Chartis Group due to their wide range of metrics versus the limited 

metrics that the other organizations utilize. Therefore, the 2022 Strategic Plan includes metrics from the 

Chartis Group under the Quality, Services, and Financial Stewardship pillars. 

 

 

 

6. Board Self-Evaluation 

     A final reminder that it is time for all Board members to complete their annual self-evaluation, which 

was distributed last month (November). Please complete the evaluation and return it to Rosemary by 

the first week of January so that the results can be compiled and discussed in January. We plan to 

review the results in January and use the findings to develop a 2022 Board Action Plan. 

 

7. Board Education 

     For the first time in two years, the American Hospital Association is once again going to conduct their 

AHA Rural Health Care Leadership Conference in Phoenix, Arizona February 6- 9. This conference 

addresses many issues rural hospitals are facing today and includes many top health care speakers. 

Several Board members have already signed up for the conference, but I encourage all Board members 

to participate. If you are interested, please contact Rosemary. 

 

8. December Board Work/Regular Session 

     The December Board Work Session will be used to update the Board on the Replacement Facility 

Project and several other strategic initiatives. Specifically, as it relates to our Replacement Facility 

Project where we plan to discuss: design updates; the bidding process and schedule; and the current 

status of our loan initiatives for the project. We are also going to learn about the expansion of our 

wound care program 2022 and our evaluation of various national hospital rating systems. Finally, we will 

answer any questions the Board may have regarding our proposed 2022: Operating and Capital Budgets; 

Strategic Plan; Marketing Plan, IT Plan; and Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment/ Retention 

Plan. At the December Board Meeting, the Board will be asked to act on: several Board Policies; the 

2022 Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment/Retention Plan; 2022 Operating and Capital 

Budgets; 2022 Strategic Plan; 2022 Marketing Plan; 2022 IT Plan; and the 2022 EOC Plan. There are a lot 

of action items, but hopefully most of the Board's questions regarding these items will be discussed and 

answered at the Board Work Session. May you and your family have a Merry Christmas and a wonderful 

New Year! 

 

If you have any questions regarding this report, or other hospital activities, please contact me at (269) 

214-8185 (cell), (509) 786-6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the hospital.                                                                              

 



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment A

























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment B











Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment C























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment D













Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment E















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment F





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment G































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment H































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment I









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment J



















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment K













Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment L























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M1



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M2



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M3



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M4



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M5



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M6



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M7



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment N







































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment P

















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Q



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment R

































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment S



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment T









































































































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment U



























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment V





























































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment W



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment X



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment AA







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment BB





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment CC



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment DD





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment EE





















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment FF
















	FINAL 12-14-2021- Work Session Agenda
	FINAL 12-16-21 - Board Agenda.docx
	BOC Work Plan FY2021
	2021 strategic score card
	Patient Care Scorecards
	11.16.2021 Board Work Session
	11.18.2021 Board Meeting Minutes
	12.13.21 Finance Agenda
	11.15.21 Finance Committee Minutes
	December 2021 CEO Memo Final
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H
	Attachment I
	Attachment J
	Attachment K
	Attachment L
	Attachment M1
	Attachment M2
	Attachment M3
	Attachment M4
	Attachment M5
	Attachment M6
	Attachment M7
	Attachment N
	Attachment O
	Attachment P
	Attachment Q
	Attachment R
	Attachment S
	Attachment T
	Attachment U
	Attachment V
	Attachment W
	Attachment X
	Attachment AA
	Attachment BB
	Attachment CC
	Attachment DD
	Attachment EE
	Attachment FF



